
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need disability-related modification or 
accommodation including auxiliary aids or services to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 
Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

October 23, 2024 

City Council Meeting 
  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

            Mayor Kim Douglass ⋅ Mayor Pro Tem Sean Lomen 
      Councilmembers Caroline McCully ⋅ Larry Hillberg ⋅ Trinity Burruss 

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
October 23, 2024 

Regular Session 6:00 PM 

You may access the meeting and address the Council by the following means: 
ZOOM at  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84968570574 

Dial in by calling one of the numbers listed below and enter the Webinar ID: 
849 6857 0574 

1 669 900 6833 / 1 669 444 9171 / 1 719 359 4580 / 1 253 205 0468 
View Only on Facebook Live on our City of Colfax page: City of Colfax, California. 

You may also submit written comments to the City Clerk via email at  
city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov, via regular mail to P.O. Box 702, Colfax CA 95713, or              by 

dropping them off at City Hall, 33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 95713. Comments 
received will be submitted to Council and made a part of the record. 

1 CLOSED SESSION (None) 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 
2C. Roll Call 
2D. Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 
Recommended Action: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

        2E. Statement of Conflict of Interest 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Matters on the Consent Calendar are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a 
Council vote. No discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and 
separate action. If you wish to have             an item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify 
the Mayor. 
Recommended Action: Approve Consent Calendar 

       3A. Minutes 
Recommended Action: By Motion, approve the Colfax City Council minutes of 10/9/2024. 

3B. Minutes 
Recommended Action: By Motion, approve the Colfax City Council minutes of 10/16/2024. 

1

Pages 4-6

Page 7

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84968570574
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84968570574
mailto:city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov,


Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need disability-related modification or 
accommodation including auxiliary aids or services to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 
Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

October 23, 2024 

3C. Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis – Quarter ended June 30, 2024 
Recommended Action: Accept and File. 

3D.       Cash Summary – September 2024 
 Recommended Action: Accept and File. 

3E.       I&I Mitigation Project Acceptance 
 Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution __-2024 authorizing the City Manager to execute and 
 record a Notice of Completion for the I&I Mitigation Project, Project NO. 20-2024 I&I. 

    *** End of Consent Calendar *** 

4 AGENCY REPORTS 

       4A. Placer County Sheriff’s Office 

       4B. California Highway Patrol 

       4C. Placer County Fire Department/CALFIRE 

       4D. Non-Profits 

5 PRESENTATION 

5A.     History of the Colfax Area Living War Memorial Ballpark 
 Recommended Action: Receive the Presentation. 

6 PUBLIC HEARING (NONE) 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public are permitted to address the Council orally or in writing on matters of concern to the public within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the City that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as succinct as 
possible. Oral comments made at the meeting may not exceed five (5) minutes per speaker. Written comments should not 
exceed 800 words. Written comments received before the close of an agenda item may be read into the record, with a 
maximum allowance of five (5) minutes in length. Council cannot act on items not listed on this agenda but may briefly 
respond to statements made or questions posed, request clarification, refer the matter to staff, or place the matter on a 
future agenda. 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed 
at committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues.                 If a member 
of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a 
future Council meeting agenda.

       8A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

       8B. City Operations Update – City Manager 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
9A.       Skate Park Project Update and Preliminary Plans 

 Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution __-2024 to approve the redesign and the Preliminary 
 Plans for the Colfax Skate Park. 

2

Pages 8-10

Pages 11-17

Pages 18-20

Pages 21-40

Pages 41-52



Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need disability-related modification or 
accommodation including auxiliary aids or services to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 
Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

October 23, 2024 

I, Amanda Ahre, City Clerk for the City of Colfax, declare that this agenda was posted in accordance  with the Brown 
Act at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at http://colfax-ca.gov/ 

Amanda Ahre, City Clerk 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law. If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to 

the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

LEVINE ACT WARNING: In certain instances, parties, participants, and their agents before the City Council are subject to the campaign disclosure provisions 
detailed in Government Code Section 84308, California Code of Regulations Sections 18438.1 through 18438.8, and Fair Political Practices Commission 
Opinion 0-22-002. All parties, participants, and their agents are hereby directed to review these sections for compliance. If you believe that these provisions 
apply to you or a Council Member, please inform the City Clerk at the earliest possible opportunity. 

9B.       United Sovereign Americans Resolution on Elections 
 Recommended Action: Take no action 

10 GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Informal statements, observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by 
Councilmembers under this agenda item or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda. No action will               be 
taken. 

  10A. Public Comment on Good of the Order 
      Members of the public are permitted to address the Council on matters that relate to general welfare of the City that  
      have not been previously discussed on this agenda. Oral comments may not exceed five (5) minutes. Written comments 

 should not exceed 800 words. 

11 ADJOURNMENT 

3

Pages 53-60

http://colfax-ca.gov/


   City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Colfax City Council 
Wednesday, October 9, 2024 
City Hall Council Chambers, 33 S Main Street, 
Colfax CA and attended via Teleconference through ZOOM 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order – Mayor Douglass called the Open Session to order at 6:05 p.m. 

          2B. Pledge of Allegiance – Sharron Connors lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2C. Roll Call 

Present: , Councilmember Hillberg, Mayor Pro Tem Lomen, Councilmember McCully, Mayor Douglass 
Absent: Councilmember Burruss 

          2D. Approval of Agenda Order 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Lomen to approve the agenda order, seconded by Councilmember 
McCully, and approved by the following vote: 
AYES: Hillberg, Lomen, McCully, Douglass 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: Burruss 

          2E. Statement of Conflict of Interest – No conflicts were identified by the Council or the public. 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 

3A.       Minutes 
      Recommended Action: By Motion, approve the Colfax City Council minutes of 9/25/2024 

3B.       Cash Summar – August 2024 
      Recommended Action: Accept and file 

3C.       Trojan UV – UV Sleeve & Lamp Purchase 
      Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 52-2024 authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
      agreement with Trojan UV to purchase UV lamps for the Wastewater Treatment System 

      MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Lomen to approve the consent calendar Seconded by 
      Councilmember Hillberg, and approved by the following vote: 
      AYES:  Hillberg, Lomen, McCully, Douglass 
      NOES: 
      ABSTAIN: 
      ABSENT: Burruss 

4 Agency Reports 

4A. Placer County Sheriff’s – Lieutenant Griffiths announced his promotion and that he will be leaving the 
City of Colfax. Deputy King gave a report on statistics for the month of September. 

4B. CHP – Absent 

Item 3A

4



  
   

  

 

 

4C. Placer County Fire/CALFIRE – Chief Counts reported on the fire in Dutch Flat, and gave statistics for 
the month of September. 

4D. Non-Profits – Sharron Connors with the VFW spoke of the Ballpark Fundraiser, pancake breakfast, bake 
sale, and the senior lunch. 

5 PRESENTATION (None) 
 

6 PUBLIC HEARING (None) 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
      Harry Anderson questioned the new marking on Canyon Way and congratulated Lieutenant Griffiths on 
      his promotion. 
 
      Brian Faircloth, Brian Brbaker, William Trathen, Laura Bloas, and Adrianne Uhl, all volunteers of the  
      United Sovereign Americans, presented a resolution for a valid 2024 election. A copy of this resolution  
      was given to all council members for consideration to discuss on a future agenda. 
 
      Roy Johannesen would like to find a way to keep Colfax thriving, and discussed possibly leasing parking 
      spaces in open parking areas. 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 

8A.       Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers.  
 
      Mayor Pro Tem Lomen had nothing to report. 
 
      Councilmember Hillberg attended the Economic Development Commission meeting and Coffee and  
      Conversations. 
 
      Councilmember McCully talked about Oktoberfest, Coffee and Conversations, SACOG meeting, and  
      an upcoming performance at the Colfax Theater on 10/17. 
 
      Mayor Douglass talked about Coffee and Conversations. 

8B.       City Operations Update – City Manager 
 
      City Manager Walker reported the compost pad construction is underway, I&I is nearly complete, the  
      progress of the Algae project at the WWTP, and the upgrade of the SCADA system at the WWTP. 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

9A.       Ordinance Establishing Administrative Remedies Procedure for Challenges to Fees, Charges, and 
      Assessments 
      Recommended Action: Introduce and waive the first reading of ordinance establishing an  
      administrative remedies procedure for challenges to fees, charges and assessments. 
 
      City Attorney Conor Harkins introduced this item. 
 
      Roy Johannesen asked if this would make it easier or harder to protest fees and charges. 
 
      Council discussed this item further. 

Item 3A

5



  
   

  

 

 

 MOTION made by Councilmember McCully Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Lomen, and approved by the 
following vote: 
      AYES:  Hillberg, Lomen, McCully, Douglass 
      NOES: 
      ABSTAIN: 
      ABSENT: Burruss 

10 GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Lomen asked to bring the United Sovereign American’s resolution back to discuss on the 
next agenda. 
Councilmember Hillberg had nothing for good of the order. 
 
Councilmember McCully talked about the upcoming Chili Cook off, Farmer’s and Children’s markets, first 
responder’s dinner, the upcoming play at the Colfax Theater, and the upcoming pancake breakfast. 
 
Mayor Douglass had nothing for good of the order. 

 10A.       Public Comment on Good of the Order 
 
      No public comment on good of the order. 
            

11 ADJOURNMENT 
As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Douglass adjourned the meeting, by motion and 
without objection at 7:08 p.m. Respectfully submitted to City Council this 23rd day of October, 2024. 
 
                       

              
   Amanda Ahre, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

Item 3A

6



   City Council Minutes 
Special Meeting of Colfax City Council 
Wednesday, October 16, 2024 
City Hall Council Chambers, 33 S Main Street, 
Colfax CA  

1 OPEN SESSION 

1A. Call Open Session to Order – Mayor Douglass called the Open Session to order at 6:01 p.m. 

          1B. Public Comment (On the Closed Session Items Only) 

No Public Comment 
1C. By Consensus of the Council, adjourn to a Closed Session 

Council adjourned to a closed session at 6:02 p.m. 

1D. Roll Call 

Present: , Councilmember Hillberg, Mayor Pro Tem Lomen, Councilmember McCully, Mayor Douglass 
Absent: Councilmember Burruss 

Councilmember McCully recused herself from item 1E only. 

          1E. Conference with Legal Counsel; Existing Litigation (Gov. Code, § 54956.9, subd. (d)(1)) 
       Name of Case: ColfaxNet, LLC v. City of Colfax (E.D.Cal. 2019) 2:19-cv-02167-WBS-CKD 

Names of Parties or Claimants: ColfaxNet, LLC; City of Colfax 
Case Number: 2:19-cv-02167-WBS-CKD 

1F. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (Gov. Code, § 54956.8) 
Property Address: 962 South Canyon Way; 1534 South Canyon Way; 1624 South Canyon Way 
Agency Negotiator: Ron Walker 
Negotiating Parties: David Gard; Sierra Property Development; Winner Chevrolet 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment 

1G. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (Gov. Code, 54956.8) 
Property address: 99 Railroad St. 
Agency Negotiator: Ron Walker 
Negotiating Parties: Tammy Hampshire 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment 

1H. Report from Closed Session 

Nothing to report. 

 ADJOURNMENT 
As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Douglass adjourned the meeting, by motion and 
without objection at 7:30 p.m. Respectfully submitted to City Council this 23rd day of October, 2024 

   Amanda Ahre, City Clerk 

Item 3B

7



City of Colfax Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis QE 06.30.24 
Staff Report October 23, 2024         

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE OCTOBER 23, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
From: Ron Walker, City Manager 
Prepared by: Shanna Stahl, Administrative Services Officer 
Subject: Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis – Quarter Ended June 30, 2024 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

City staff provides a quarterly report on Sales and Use Tax revenues as quarterly information is available. We 
have received the final Accounting for Sales and Use Tax revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2024, which 
is the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2023-2024. 

As reported in the chart below, sales tax revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 increased 84% as compared 
to the same quarter last year, and was 95% higher as compared to the previous quarter (03/31/2024).   

Fiscal and Budget Impacts 

The budget for the current fiscal year was forecasted at a conservative 3% growth over the 2023-2024 fiscal 
year budget and equates to 48% of the actual revenues received in the last fiscal year.   

Sales tax revenues are very difficult to predict. While we did experience a strong closing quarter for fiscal year 
2023-2024 sales tax revenue, there is no concrete evidence to suggest there should be a long-term adjustment. 
The estimates for this fiscal year remain conservative. 

Staff will continue to monitor and provide updates as additional information is available. 

Attachments: 
1. Graph – City of Colfax – Sales and Use Tax Revenues
2. Chart  – City of Colfax – Sales and Use Tax Revenues History

QE 09/30 QE 12/31 QE 03/31 QE 06/30
Total Fiscal 

Year Actuals
Fiscal Year 

Budget

Actuals as % 
of Fiscal 

Year Budget

Actuals to 
Budget 

Difference
Original 
Budget

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 397,425$     332,232$     305,997$     598,109$     1,633,763$  1,336,734$ 122% 297,029$        1,336,734$ 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 410,913$     353,933$     248,626$     325,197$     1,338,670$  1,297,800$ 103% 40,870$          1,297,800$ 
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 300,458$     298,414$     378,914$     414,444$     1,392,230$  1,260,000$ 110% 132,230$        1,260,000$ 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 391,444$     340,379$     326,981$     365,994$     1,424,798$  1,250,000$ 114% 174,798$        1,125,000$ 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 457,737$     320,975$     370,903$     374,688$     1,524,302$  1,450,000$ 105% 74,302$          1,430,388$ 

  % Change - Previous Calendar Qtr 22% -16% -8% 95%
% Change - Same Qtr  - Prev Year -3% -6% 23% 84%

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File 

Item 3C

8



City of Colfax
Sales and Use Tax Revenues

(Actuals Through Quarter Ended 06/30/2024)

QE 09/30 QE 12/31 QE 03/31 QE 06/30

2023-2024 Budget $334,184 $334,184 $334,184 $334,184

2023-2024 $292,374 $332,232 $305,997 $598,109

2022-2023 $410,913 $353,933 $248,626 $325,197

2021-2022 $300,458 $298,414 $378,914 $414,444

2020-2021 $391,444 $340,379 $326,981 $365,994

FY 2023-2024 Q1

FY 2023-2024 Q2

2023-2024, $305,997 

2023-2024, $598,109 

 $200,000

 $240,000

 $280,000

 $320,000

 $360,000

 $400,000

 $440,000

 $480,000

 $520,000

 $560,000

 $600,000

 $640,000

Sa
le

s 
Ta

x 
 b

y 
Q

ua
rt

er

Item 3C

9



City of Colfax
Sales and Use Tax Revenues

Actuals Change % Change
1999-2000 478,169$               
2000-2001 484,801$               6,632$                   1%
2001-2002 592,392$               107,591$               22%
2002-2003 581,749$               (10,643)$                -2%
2003-2004 601,276$               19,527$                 3%
2004-2005 707,515$               106,239$               18%
2005-2006 749,583$               42,068$                 6%
2006-2007 752,431$               2,848$                   0%
2007-2008 648,989$               (103,442)$              -14%
2008-2009 540,051$               (108,938)$              -17%
2009-2010 538,549$               (1,502)$                  0%
2010-2011 551,953$               13,404$                 2%
2011-2012 571,943$               19,990$                 4%
2012-2013 706,828$               134,885$               24%
2013-2014 928,729$               221,901$               31%
2014-2015 956,342$               27,613$                 3%
2015-2016 * 1,104,357$            148,015$               15%
2016-2017  1,103,560$            (797)$                     0%
2017-2018 1,370,741$            267,181$               24%
2018-2019 1,401,608$            30,867$                 2%
2019-2020 1,524,302$            122,694$               9%
2020-2021 1,424,789$            (99,513)$                -7%
2021-2022 1,392,230$            (32,559)$                -2%
2022-2023 1,338,670$            (53,560)$                -4%
2023-2024 1,633,763$            295,093$               22%

*Included  true up and final adjustments related to the end of the decade old 
  triple flip sales tax program which ended December 31, 2015

City of Colfax
Sales and Use Tax Revenue History

Item 3C

10



City of Colfax Cash Summary – September 2024 
Staff Report October 23, 2024 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE OCTOBER 23, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
From: Ron Walker, City Manager 
Prepared by: Shanna Stahl – Administrative Services Officer 
Subject: Cash Summary –  September 2024 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

The monthly financial report includes General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax Cash 
Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The purpose of these reports is to provide the status of funds 
and transparency for Council and the public regarding the financial transactions of the City. The reports are 
prepared monthly on a cash basis and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, 
and bank statements.  Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and as part of the proposed 
budget process each year. 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in September 2024. 
Some monthly highlights are listed below: 

o September revenues included:
o Allocation for Sales Tax revenues reported/paid to the State for the month of July 2024 (two-month

lag).
o September expenditures included:

o Approved capital project expenditures – expenditures on WWTP Construction Grant.
o Quarterly payment to Placer County for Sheriff contracted services

o Negative cash fund balances at the end of September are primarily due to the timing of funding allocations
and reimbursements:

o Fund 218 – Support Law Enforcement – These expenses are fully funded by Citizens Options for
Public Safety Funding ($100K per year). The first allocation for this fiscal year should be received
in October.

o Fund 250 – Streets – Roads/Transportation.  These expenses are funded by annual Transportation
funding through Placer County Transportation Agency (PCTPA), transfer of City Gas Tax
revenues, and a General Fund allocation. PCTPA funding request will be completed in October.

o Fund 358 – CDBG Road Rehabilitation.  This is a reimbursable grant – the final funding of the
grant was awarded in November 2023.  The City has begun the reimbursement process. SB1 Funds
received will also help pay for the City’s match obligation.

o Fund 386 – Caboose Relocation. These expenses are being tracked for the relocation of the
downtown caboose.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File. 

Item 3D

11



  
City of Colfax Cash Summary – September 2024 
Staff Report October 23, 2024 

  

o Fund 575 – WWTP Construction Grant.  This is a reimbursable grant.  Reimbursement requests 
are scheduled to be submitted at least quarterly.  

o Fund 590 – Sewer Consolidation Planning Grant.  This is a reimbursable grant – reimbursement 
requests are scheduled to be submitted quarterly upon final award of application grant. Tentatively 
scheduled for Spring 2025. 

o Anticipated revenues/expenditures for October include: 
o Revenues 

 Allocation for Sales Tax revenues reported/paid to the State for the month of August 2024 
(two-month lag).  

 Capital project reimbursements. 
o Expenditures 

 Approved capital project expenditures.  We anticipate continued large expenditures for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction project as the I/I Mitigation and Algae 
Reduction phases continue construction. The CDBG project will also have large expenses. 

 Ongoing monthly operating expenses. 
 
Attachments: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graph 
2. Cash Activity Reports  

a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund  
c. Check Register Report - Accounts Payable 

 

Item 3D

12



 

Prev Yr Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Cash Balance FY2024-25 $4,363 $4,352 $4,761 $4,545
Budget FY2024-25 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363 $4,363
Cash Balance FY2023-24 $3,911 $3,785 $3,834 $3,638 $3,789 $3,911 $3,791 $4,162 $4,263 $4,124 $4,251 $4,570 $4,363
Cash Balance FY2022-23 $3,418 $3,412 $3,568 $3,396 $3,451 $3,644 $3,560 $3,935 $4,039 $3,819 $3,765 $4,087 $3,911
Cash Balance FY2021-22 $2,857 $2,831 $2,953 $2,833 $2,943 $2,946 $2,794 $3,120 $3,088 $2,971 $3,004 $3,462 $3,418
Cash Balance FY2020-21 $2,311 $2,392 $2,497 $2,386 $2,402 $2,463 $2,393 $2,688 $2,760 $2,612 $2,771 $3,023 $2,857
Cash Balance FY2019-20 $2,013 $2,069 $2,169 $2,110 $2,170 $2,467 $2,373 $2,747 $2,730 $2,615 $2,627 $2,910 $2,311
*Reserves (Ops, Cap, Pen) $1,095 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

 $4,000

 $4,500

 $5,000

City of Colfax - September 2024
General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis

(Dollars in Thousands)

Fiscal Year 2024-25 >>

Item 3D

13



 

Balance 8/31/24 Revenues In* Expenses Out* Transfers Balance 9/30/24

US Bank 61,253.13$        2,770,625.62$     (1,966,244.04)$    (725,000.00)$        140,634.71$         
LAIF 6,682,151.30$   -$                     -$                     725,000.00$         7,407,151.30$      
Total Cash - General Ledger 6,743,404.43$   2,770,625.62$     (1,966,244.04)$    -$                      7,547,786.01$      

Petty Cash (In Safe) 300.00$             300.00$                

Total Cash 6,743,704.43$   2,770,625.62$     (1,966,244.04)$    -$                      7,548,086.01$      

 
Change in Cash Account Balance - Total 804,381.58$         

 

Attached Reports:
   1.  Cash Transactions Report (By Individual Fund)  
   2.  Check Register Report (Accounts Payable) (1,810,454.99)$      

Cash Receipts 2,539,216.60$     
Payroll Checks and Tax Deposits (71,377.21)$         
Utility Billings - Receipts 146,997.18$         
LAIF Interest -$                     
Utility Billing Tax Rolls -$                     
Void Checks -$                     

804,381.58$        -$                       

*Does not include transfers between funds

Prepared by: Shanna Stahl, Administrative Services Officer
Shanna Stahl, Administrative Services Officer

Reviewed by:

Ron Walker, City Manager

 

City of Colfax 
Cash Summary

September 30, 2024

Item 3D

14



 
 Beginning 

Balance 
 Debit    

Revenues 
 Credit 

(Expenditures) 
 Ending     
Balance 

Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned
Fund:  100 - General Fund 4,500,655.63$     144,752.55$        (322,599.66)$       4,322,808.52$     
Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees 204,091.11$        -$                     (1,462.50)$           202,628.61$        
Fund:  200 - Cannabis Application 19,201.55$          1,086.91$            -$                     20,288.46$          
Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned 4,723,948.29$     145,839.46$        (324,062.16)$       4,545,725.59$     

Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted
Fund:  205 - Escrow Funds -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Fund:  571 - AB939 Landfill Diversion 23,299.04$          -$                     -$                     23,299.04$          
Fund:  572 - Landfill Post Closure Maintenance 889,365.45$        -$                     (4,337.48)$           885,027.97$        
Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted 912,664.49$        -$                     (4,337.48)$           908,327.01$        

Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricted
Fund:  210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Fund:  211 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage 5,755.71$            -$                     -$                     5,755.71$            
Fund:  212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails 79,958.02$          -$                     -$                     79,958.02$          
Fund:  213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec 198,700.22$        -$                     -$                     198,700.22$        
Fund:  214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs 69,958.54$          -$                     -$                     69,958.54$          
Fund:  215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles 23,590.51$          -$                     -$                     23,590.51$          
Fund:  217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking 36,395.88$          -$                     -$                     36,395.88$          
Fund:  218 - Support Law Enforcement -$                     -$                     (25,000.00)$         (25,000.00)$         
Fund:  244 - CDBG  Program Inc - ME Lending 1,800.00$            -$                     -$                     1,800.00$            
Fund:  250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation (31,599.32)$         270.00$               (15,992.97)$         (47,322.29)$         
Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes 4,869.41$            5,588.19$            (1,575.99)$           8,881.61$            
Fund:  257 - Street /Road - Transit Capital 48,346.04$          -$                     -$                     48,346.04$          
Fund:  258 - Road Maintenance - SB1/RSTBG -$                     4,514.57$            -$                     4,514.57$            
Fund:  270 - Beverage Container Recycling 20,381.43$          -$                     -$                     20,381.43$          
Fund:  280 - Oil Recycling 4,018.78$            -$                     -$                     4,018.78$            
Fund:  290 - SB1383 Implementation Grant 83,051.27$          -$                     (1,252.50)$           81,798.77$          
Fund:  292 - Fire Department Capital Funds 99,519.31$          -$                     -$                     99,519.31$          
Fund:  342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation 84,481.62$          -$                     -$                     84,481.62$          
Fund:  343 - Recreation Construction 84,482.10$          -$                     -$                     84,482.10$          
Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricte 813,709.52$        10,372.76$          (43,821.46)$         780,260.82$        

 
Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted
Fund:  300 - GF Capital Projects -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Fund:  358 - CDBG Pavement (1,177,181.37)$    190,612.82$        (46,543.81)$         (1,033,112.36)$    
Fund:  386 - Caboose Relocation (570.00)$              -$                     -$                     (570.00)$              
Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted (1,177,751.37)$    190,612.82$        (46,543.81)$         (1,033,682.36)$    

Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds 
Fund:  560 - Sewer 1,958,032.28$     92,914.63$          (73,948.86)$         1,976,998.05$     
Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations 503,265.96$        15,212.96$          (18,220.32)$         500,258.60$        
Fund:  563 - Wastewater Treatment Plant 1,401,653.77$     43,136.82$          -$                     1,444,790.59$     
Fund:  564 - Sewer Connections 294,272.92$        -$                     -$                     294,272.92$        
Fund:  575 - WWTP Construction Grant (2,631,037.47)$    2,200,293.00$     (1,383,552.74)$    (1,814,297.21)$    
Fund:  577 - Capital Projects -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Fund:  590 - Sewer Consolidation Planning (58,675.46)$         -$                     (380.00)$              (59,055.46)$         
Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds - Unassigne 1,467,512.00$     2,351,557.41$     (1,476,101.92)$    2,342,967.49$     

Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT
Fund:  998 - PAYROLL CLEARING FUND 3,321.50$            865.96$               4,187.46$            
Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT 3,321.50$            865.96$               -$                     4,187.46$            

Grand Totals:  6,743,404.43$     2,699,248.41$     (1,894,866.83)$    7,547,786.01$     

City of Colfax
Cash Transactions Report - September 2024

Item 3D

15



CITY OF COLFAX

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

US BANK 1Page:
 4:14 pmTime:

10/01/2024Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

US BANK Checks

12,836.88CALPERS03141Reconciled09/03/2461035 09/30/24 HEALTH PREMIUMS Sept 24 

828.26AT&T MOBILITY01766Reconciled09/09/2461036 09/30/24 CITY HALL PHONES 

70,169.78BANNER BANK02054Reconciled09/09/2461037 09/30/24 I&I RETENTION JULY 2024 

332.80COLFAX CAR WASH3506Reconciled09/09/2461038 09/30/24 CAR WASH CARDS 
3,000.00FALCON FOUNDATION06148Reconciled09/09/2461039 09/30/24 DONATION/HS SOUND SYSTEM 

220.00LYNN FONTANA 6423Reconciled09/09/2461040 09/30/24 REFUND OF DEPOSIT & FIELD USE 

2,610.00GEOCON CONSULTANTS INC.7223Reconciled09/09/2461041 09/30/24 CDBG ROAD REHAB AUG 24 

110.77GOLD MOUNTAIN 
CALIFORNIA

07460Reconciled09/09/2461042 09/30/24 ZONING PUBLIC NOTICE 

93.17GOLD MOUNTAIN 
CALIFORNIA

07460Reconciled09/09/2461043 09/30/24 SHORT TERM RENTAL NOTICE 

1,384.42HOME DEPOT CREDIT 
SERVICES

08501Reconciled09/09/2461044 09/30/24 SUPPLIES 

776.61HUNT AND SONS, LLC08660Reconciled09/09/2461045 09/30/24 FUEL 

8.69MAR-VAL'S SIERRA MARKET19390Printed09/09/2461046 WATER 

631,528.11MCGUIRE & HESTER13239Reconciled09/09/2461047 09/30/24 I&I PROJECT JULY 2024 
172.26NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 

GLOVE
14356Reconciled09/09/2461048 09/30/24 PW SUPPLIES 

3,983.66PELLETREAU, ALDERSON & 
CABRAL

16011(2)Reconciled09/09/2461049 09/30/24 LEGAL SERVICES AUG 2024 

30,610.67PG&E16035Reconciled09/09/2461050 09/30/24 ELECTRICITY 

243,042.00PLACER COUNTY SHERIFF 
DEPT.

16200Reconciled09/09/2461051 09/30/24 Q1 FY 24/25 SHERIFF CONTRACT 

26,620.25PSOMAS16821Reconciled09/09/2461052 09/30/24 WWTP CONST MAN JULY 2024 
155.00SAFE SIDE SECURITY19037Reconciled09/09/2461053 09/30/24 CORP YARD SECURITY SEPT 24 

95.00SAFE SIDE SECURITY19037Reconciled09/09/2461054 09/30/24 WWTP SECURITY SEPT24 

300.00WILLIAM STOCKWIN 19743Reconciled09/09/2461055 09/30/24 COLFAX CONN EDITING SEPT 24 

577.50VAN GRONINGEN & 
ASSOCIATES

22106Reconciled09/09/2461056 09/30/24 FINANCIAL SERV. JULY 24 

787.50VAN GRONINGEN & 
ASSOCIATES

22106Reconciled09/09/2461057 09/30/24 FINANCIAL SERV. AUG 24 

3,800.00VISION QUEST22134Reconciled09/09/2461058 09/30/24 TECH SUPPORT OCT 24 

18.77WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled09/09/2461059 09/30/24 DEPOT PHONE 

196.40WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY18883Reconciled09/09/2461060 09/30/24 BLUE TOWELS 
613.94WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY18883Reconciled09/09/2461061 09/30/24 SUPPLIES 

231,550.92WM LYLES23453Reconciled09/09/2461062 09/30/24 ALGAE REDUCTION JULY 2024 

1,635.0049ER WATER SERVICES1161Printed09/17/2461063 WWTP TESTING JULY 2024 

5,000.00ADAMS ASHBY GROUP, INC.01270Reconciled09/17/2461064 09/30/24 CDBG GENERAL ADMIN AUG 24 
5,500.00ADAMS ASHBY GROUP, INC.01270Reconciled09/17/2461065 09/30/24 CDBG LABOR COMPLIANCE AUG 24 

48.47ALHAMBRA & SIERRA 
SPRINGS

01414Reconciled09/17/2461066 09/30/24 WATER 

6,480.00BUREAU VERITAS NORTH 
AMERICA

02901Reconciled09/17/2461067 09/30/24 BLDG OFFICIAL SVCS AUG 24 

14,202.50CARTWRIGHT NOR CAL, INC.03160Reconciled09/17/2461068 09/30/24 ENG SVCS AUG 2024 

797.84CHOICE BUILDER03401Reconciled09/17/2461069 09/30/24 PREMIUMS OCTOBER 2024 

1,616.38CINTAS3425Reconciled09/17/2461070 09/30/24 UNIFORMS AUGUST 2024 

582.00CITY OF FOSTER CITY03446Reconciled09/17/2461071 09/30/24 WWTP POSITION POSTING 
537.00CLARK PEST CONTROL3475Reconciled09/17/2461072 09/30/24 PEST CONTROL 

2,985.00COLANTUONO, HIGHSMITH &3494Reconciled09/17/2461073 09/30/24 LEGAL MATTERS AUGUST 2024 

103.45DACOMM04592Printed09/17/2461074 WWTP INTERNET OCT 2024 

51.51DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL04234Printed09/17/2461075 COPY MACH ANNUAL TAX 
750.00G&T TRUCK REPAIR7798Reconciled09/17/2461076 09/30/24 REPAIR DUMP TRUCK BRAKES 

235.80GRAINGER07570Reconciled09/17/2461077 09/30/24 WWTP HYDRALIC OIL 

3,632.14HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL 
CO.

08159Reconciled09/17/2461078 09/30/24 WWTP CHEMICALS 

995.00HOWELL'S GARAGE DOORS, 
INC

08562Reconciled09/17/2461079 09/30/24 FIRE STATION DOOR OPENER 

5.63INLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS09455Reconciled09/17/2461080 09/30/24 COPY MACH LEASE Q4 23/24 

606.50INTERSTATE SALES09540Reconciled09/17/2461081 09/30/24 POSTS FOR "NO TRUCK" SIGNS 

242.50LAWRENCE & ASSOCIATES 
INC

12180Printed09/17/2461082 LANDFILL MONITORING AUG 24 

Item 3D

16



CITY OF COLFAX

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

US BANK 2Page:
 4:14 pmTime:

10/01/2024Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

US BANK Checks

2,066.18LIBERTY PROCESS 
EQUIPMENT, INC

012207Reconciled09/17/2461083 09/30/24 WWTP PUMP 

7,994.38MANAGEMENT ADVISORY 
SERVICES

13191Reconciled09/17/2461084 09/30/24 PLANNING SVCS AUGUST 2024 

50.00MCCULLY, CAROLINE B.13211Printed09/17/2461085 REFUND POLITICAL SIGN DEPOSIT 

17.47NAPA AUTO PARTS18400Reconciled09/17/2461086 09/30/24 SUPPLIES 
115.70PITNEY BOWES16040AReconciled09/17/2461087 09/30/24 POSTAGE MACH INK 

30,478.00PSOMAS16821Reconciled09/17/2461088 09/30/24 CDBG ROAD REHAB CONST JUL24 

507.00PURCHASE POWER16040Reconciled09/17/2461089 09/30/24 POSTAGE REFILL 

1,252.50R3 CONSULTING GROUP17951Reconciled09/17/2461090 09/30/24 GRANT FUND MGMNT AUG 24 
132.16SIERRA OFFICE PRODUCTS01790Reconciled09/17/2461091 09/30/24 OFFICE SUPPLIES 

224.15SIERRA SAFETY COMPANY19396Reconciled09/17/2461092 09/30/24 STREET SIGNS 

215.72WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Reconciled09/17/2461093 09/30/24 CITY HALL PHONES 

1,156.17WESTERN PLACER WASTE23301Reconciled09/17/2461094 09/30/24 SLUDGE REMOVAL AUGUST 24 
845.00BUREAU VERITAS NORTH 

AMERICA
02901Printed09/25/2461095 MINK CREEK HOA PLAN CHK 

100.00COLFAX RAILROAD DAYS3555Printed09/25/2461096 EVENT DEPOSIT REFUND 

504.79DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL04234Printed09/25/2461097 COPY MACHINE LEASE OCT 24 

1,572.50FENNEMORE CRAIG, PC6203Printed09/25/2461098 LEGAL MATTERS AUG 2024 

275.47FRONTIER 
COMMUNICATIONS

06278Printed09/25/2461099 WWTP PHONE 

1,388.31GHD INC.14859Printed09/25/2461100 CDBG ROAD REHAB AUG 2024 

137.17GOLD MOUNTAIN 
CALIFORNIA

07460Printed09/25/2461101 ZONING ORDINANCE NOTICE 

123.97GOLD MOUNTAIN 
CALIFORNIA

07460Printed09/25/2461102 SHORT TERM RENTAL NOTICE 

816.63HUNT AND SONS, LLC08660Reconciled09/25/2461103 09/30/24 FUEL 

326.25LARRY WALKER ASSOCIATES23101Printed09/25/2461104 NPDES PERMIT ASSIT. AUG 24 
100.00MALOTT, LORIDEE13188Printed09/25/2461105 REFUND EVENT DEPOSIT 

3,218.77PCWA -PLACER COUNTY16300Printed09/25/2461106 WATER 

994.00PLACER COUNTY AIR 
POLLUTION

16140Printed09/25/2461107 PER CAPITA ASSESSMENT 

71.83WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Printed09/25/2461108 CORP YARD INTERNET 

422,021.18WM LYLES23453Printed09/25/2461109 ALGAE REDUCTION AUG 2024 

21,319.61SCORE - SMALL CITIES 
ORGANIZED

19070Printed09/25/2461110 WORKERS COMP Q2 FY 24/25 

1,810,454.99Checks Total (excluding void checks):76Total Checks:

1,810,454.99Bank Total (excluding void checks):76Total Payments:

Grand Total (excluding void checks):Total Payments: 76 1,810,454.99

Item 3D

17



City of Colfax I&I Mitigation Project Acceptance 
Staff Report October 24, 2024 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE OCTOBER 23, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
From: 
Prepared by: 
Subject: 

Ron Walker, City Manager
Jim Fletter, Senior Engineer with Wood Rodgers, Inc. 
I&I Mitigation Project Acceptance 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded: √ Un-funded: Amount:  N/A Fund(s):  575 

Summary/Background 
The City of Colfax entered into a Construction Grant Agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board 
(Water Board) in 2021 for the construction of the Solar, Algae Reduction, and I&I Mitigation Projects.  
McGuire and Hester was the construction contractor awarded the I&I Mitigation Project (Project).  The Project 
has been deemed by City staff and its representatives as complete. 

The Project primarily consisted of replacement and rehabilitation of sewer mains, manholes, and services to 
property lines.  The City maintains approximately 62,000 feet of gravity sewer main, 300 manholes, and 714 
services.  This project replaced and rehabilitated the following quantities within the system. 

Gravity Sewer Main - Replacement 3,868 feet (6.2%) 
Gravity Sewer Main - Rehabilitation 3,066 feet (5.0%) 
Sewer Manhole Replacement/New 48 (16%) 
Residential Service Replacement 88 (9.2%) 

Originally not included in the Project was reconstruction of City roadways; however, Water Board staff allowed 
three roads to be reconstructed with the grant fund.  These roads included Lincoln Street, Rose Avenue and one 
block of Northstar Avenue. 

Additionally, the Project replaced a few PCWA water mains to facilitate project completion.  These 
replacements were on N. Auburn Street between Grass Valley and Depot streets, the alley adjacent to the hotel 
at Grass Valley and S. Auburn, and Northstar Avenue between Marvin Avenue and E. Church Street. 

Project Cost 

As mentioned above, the entire Project is funded through a Clean Water State Revolving Fund Grant.  The 
original Project cost, at bid award, was $4,225,633.  At this time, seven change orders have been issued totaling 
$1,293,459 for a current overall cost of $5,519,092.  These additional costs have been reimbursed by the Water 
Board with a $1.9 million in contingency that is include with the grant funding. 

There are three outstanding change orders that are currently being prepared by the contractor and staff.  These 
will likely total $254,000 bringing the total project cost to around $5,773,000. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution __-2024 authorizing the City Manager to execute and 
record a Notice of Completion for the I&I Mitigation Project, Project No. 20-2024 I&I. 

Item 3E

18



 

City of Colfax I&I Mitigation Project Acceptance 
 Staff Report October 24, 2024 

  

Conclusions and Findings 

Construction of the I&I Mitigation Project began on July 17, 2023, with substantial completion on August 12, 
2024.  The contractor returned to the City in October to address minor issues identified by the project inspector 
and the work was deemed complete by City staff and representatives on October 4th.  City staff recommends 
that City Council accept the I&I Mitigation Project as complete and direct the City Clerk to file a Notice of 
Completion with the Placer County Recorder.   

Fiscal Impacts 

The construction cost of the I&I Mitigation Project will be reimbursed by the State through the amended 
CWSRF funding Agreement No. D2101007 executed between the City and SWRCB in October 2023. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution __-2024 
 

Item 3E

19



I&I Mitigation Project- 
Resolution __-2024 Project Acceptance 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № __-2024 
AUHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND RECORD A NOTICE OF 
COMPLETION FOR THE I&I MITIGATION PROJECT, PROJECT NO. 20-2023 I&I 

WHEREAS, On June 8, 2023, the City awarded a contract to McGuire and Hester for various 
replacements and rehabilitation of the City’s sewer system, through a project titled I&I Mitigation, 
Project No. 20-2023 I&I; and, 

WHEREAS, the Project was completed on October 4, 2024. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax accepts the 
Project as complete and authorizes the City Manager to execute and record a Notice of Completion in 
the form attached to this Resolution. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 23rd day of October 2024 by the 
following vote of the Council: 

AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

_________________________________________ 
Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
    Amanda Ahre, City Clerk 

City of Colfax

Item 3E

20



City of Colfax History of the Colfax Area Living War Memorial Ballpark 
Presentation Staff Report October 23, 2024 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE OCTOBER 23, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
From: Ron Walker, City Manager 
Prepared by: Amanda Ahre, City Clerk 
Subject: History of the Colfax Area Living War Memorial Ballpark 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   X Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

In 1947, a dedicated group of residents came together to form the Living War Memorial Committee, driven by a 
desire to honor the sacrifices of their community’s veterans. Their efforts culminated in a groundbreaking 
ceremony on March 3, 1949. On May 8, 1949, the park was officially dedicated as the Colfax Living War 
Memorial Park. 

Over the past 75 years, this park has become a cornerstone of Colfax’s history, serving not only as a memorial 
but also as a vibrant gathering place for the community. From local events to recreational activities, the park has 
fostered a strong sense of community and remembrance. Its legacy is woven into the fabric of Colfax, 
symbolizing resilience, unity, and the enduring spirit of those who served. 

As we reflect on the park’s rich history, it stands as a testament to the commitment of its founders and the 
generations that have cherished it since its inception. 

Fiscal Impacts 

N/A 

Attachments: 
1. Living War Memorial Colfax Ball Park information packet

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the Presentation. 

Item 5A

21



Item 5A

22



Item 5A

23



Item 5A

24



Item 5A

25



Item 5A

26



Item 5A

27



Item 5A

28



Item 5A

29



Item 5A

30



Item 5A

31



Item 5A

32



Item 5A

33



Item 5A

34



Item 5A

35



Item 5A

36



Item 5A

37



Item 5A

38



Item 5A

39



Item 5A

40



City of Colfax Skate Park Redesign and Preliminary Plans Approval 
Staff Report October 23, 2024 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE OCTOBER 23, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
From: 
Prepared by: 
Subject: 

Ron Walker, City Manager 
Carl Moore, City Engineer 
Skate Park Project Update and Preliminary Plans 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:  Un-funded: Amount:  Fund(s):  

Summary/Background 

On October 23, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution 51 - 2019 which formally approved locating the 
Skate Park adjacent to the Splash pad. This project has experienced multiple delays and has yet to be completed. 

The skate park is part of the Colfax Green Machine Project, for which donations have been promised and/or 
collected from the community over the years. Increases in costs, including prevailing wage expenses, have 
surpassed the current project budget, potentially causing further delays to the project. 

Colfax Green Machine has contracted with New Line Skateparks Inc to revise the footprint of the skate park 
and provide preliminary plans for City Council review and approval. 

Conclusions and Findings 

To address the escalating project costs, City Council approved Green Machine’s request for approval to modify 
the current footprint and design of the skate park to align with the available budget and approval to allocate 
$100,000 from Colfax City Park and Recreation fees to facilitate the completion of the skate park per 
Resolution 07-2024. 

In addition, City Council approved Resolution 34-2024 authorizing the City Manager to sign a funding 
agreement with Placer County increasing the County funding from $75,000 to $205,000. 

Fiscal Impacts 

No funding impacts at this time. Preliminary plan approval only.  

Attachments: 
1. Resolution __ - 2024
2. Preliminary Plans

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution __-2024 to approve the redesign and the Preliminary Plans 
for the Colfax Skate Park. 

Item 9A

41



_________________________________________________________________________________________  
City of Colfax Skate Park Redesign and Preliminary Plans Approval 
Resolution __-2024 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № __-2024 
 

APPROVING THE REDESIGN AND THE PRELIMINARY PLANS FOR THE COLFAX SKATE 
PARK. 

 
WHEREAS, in 2022 the City entered into an agreement with the County of Placer in which the 

County agreed to provide Park Dedication Fees to the City in an amount not to exceed Seventy-Five 
Thousand dollars for a Skate Park to be constructed; and, 

 
WHEREAS, due to escalating construction related costs surpassing the project budget, an 

additional $130,000 of financial support was later requested from the county; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on April 4, 2024 the city received a new agreement from the County of Placer 

reflecting the additional $130,000 of financial support for a total of $205,000; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the April 4, 2024 agreement will terminate the March 9, 2024 agreement. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax approves the 
revised footprint and preliminary plans, direction will be provided to Colfax Green Machine to finalize the 
improvement plans for the Colfax Skate Park.  

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 

Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on October 23, 2024, by the following vote of the 
Council: 
 
AYES:   
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:  

________________________________________ 
     Kim Douglass, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
    Amanda Ahre, City Clerk 
 

Item 9A

42



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARK
COLFAX, CA

OCTOBER 2024

FINAL DESIGN PACKAGE

CONTENTS

STAKEHOLDER MEETING FEEDBACK

SITE DRAINAGE APPROACH

FINAL DESIGN CONCEPT

DESIGN THEMING

SITE ANALYSIS

EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

3D PERSPECTIVES

COST ESTIMATE

SCHEDULE

PAGE NUMBER

2

3

5

4

6

7

8

9

10

COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARK PROJECT SITE - COLFAX, CA

Item 9A

43



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

Project Development | Site Analysis
Item 9A

44



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

POTENTIAL PEDESTRIAN ACCESS 
TO ALL-WHEEL PARK 

EXISTING BUILDING & SHED  WATER TANK & GATE DAMAGED FENCE LINE

STORM DRAIN WATER LINE & 
WATER TANK GATE ACCESS

STORM DRAIN WATER LINE 
POINT OF CONNECTION

U
.G

. S
TO

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

U
.G

. S
TO

R
M

 D
R

A
INPEDESTRIAN ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

U.G. STORM DRAINU.G. STORM DRAIN

RUNOFFRUNOFF
 DRAINAGE DRAINAGE

PORTION OF BUILDING PORTION OF BUILDING 
TO BE REMOVEDTO BE REMOVED

Project Development | Existing Site Conditions
Item 9A

45



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

TYPICAL DRAIN INLET DETAIL

CONCEPT SECTION

SCHEMATIC DRAINAGE PLAN

SLOPE TO DRAINSLOPE TO DRAIN

2

3

12
" T

YP
.

12
" M

IN
.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

EPOXY COATED, CAST IRON FLOOR
DRAIN WITH ADJUSTABLE TOP,
REVERSIBLE CLAMPING COLLAR WITH
PRIMARY AND SECONDARY WEEP
HOLES, ANCHOR FLANGE, AND 6" NO
HUB CONNECTION.

INVERT ELEVATION (I.E.), PER CIVIL.

LONG RADIUS ELBOW OR TEE AS
REQUIRED. ONLY USE SHORT RADIUS
ELBOWS FOR TIGHT CLEARANCES.

6" SDR-35 DRAIN LINE.

REINFORCED FLATBOTTOM. INSTALL
REINFORCEMENT AROUND DRAIN INLET.

RIM ELEVATION (R.E.), PER PLAN.

8-INCH ROUND ADJUSTABLE HEAVY
DUTY ADJUSTABLE HEEL- PROOF
NICKEL BRONZE STRAINER WITH NO
HUB (STANDARD) OUTLET. REFER TO
BLOW-UP DETAIL.

6-INCH FERNCO SERIES 1056 RUBBER
COUPLING WITH REQUIRED CLAMPS, OR
APPROVED EQUAL.

7

STRAINER
BLOW UP DETAIL

NOTE:
1. WATTS FD-106-A6  FLOOR

DRAIN WITH ROUND HEAVY
DUTY STRAINER, OR
APPROVED EQUAL.
MANUFACTURER: WATTS,
PHONE (800) 338-2581.

8"

8

7

4

6

8

2" MIN.
CLR.

6" TYP.

5 5

1

VA
R

IE
S 

PE
R

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 P

LA
N

Spectator ViewingStreet ZoneTransition Zone

Drain Outlet

Existing Hillside

Drain Outlet Tie-In  (2547)1% Drainage

0 2.5’ 5’ 10’

+0’ (2549) +0 (2549)

+4’

Concrete
Swale

+2.5’
+4’

GEOTECHNICAL ASSUMPTIONS + APPROACH

STORM WATER ASSUMPTIONS

GEOTECHNICAL SOIL TESTING RESULTS

Geotechnical approach for the sites development is based upon the 
following notes from the Geotechnical Report:

• The city is not requiring any stormwater water quality measures due to the skatepark project replacing 
the previous pool and deck facility which was 100% impervious material.

• The city is outside of the Placer County MS4 permit area.

Note: Stormwater permitting and water quality requirements to be determined and may generate a significant cost impact for the project.

• Site strip is assumed to be 3” og organic topsoil. Actual stripping depth to be determined based on-site 
conditions.

• Undocumented Fill is possible within the footprint of former swimming pool.

• If undocumented fill (pipe, asphalt pieces, concrete) are found, the undocumented fill shall be removed 
to expose competent soil or undisturbed weathered bedrock to a deoth of 3’ below finished pad grade, 
whichever is shallower (Per Geotech Report)

  
• Subgrade Prep shall include (in Overexcavated areas and areas left at grade) scarifying to a depth of 12”, 

uniformly moisture-conditioned, at or above optimum moisture content, and compacted to at least 90% 
relative compaction.

CONCRETE SWALE

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

E SW
A

LE

TIE-IN LOCATION @ 2547

NEW DRAIN @ 2549

DECK @ 2553

EX. SD @ 2550TO EX. SD BEYOND @ 2544

TO EX. SD BEYOND @ 2544

TO EX. SD
@2550

New Concrete Swale New Landscape Swale Surface Drainage Flow

Existing Storm Drain Line New Drain Line

Not to Scale

Legend

HIGH POINT @ 2552.5 

HIGH POINT @
 2552.5 

2:1 HILLSIDE SLOPE

Design Development | Site Drainage Approach
Item 9A

46



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

CONCEPT 1

PRESENTED CONCEPTS

KEY

MEETING SUMMARY

PREFERRED FEATURES

SUGGESTED THEMING IMPROVEMENTS

CONCEPT 2 - PREFERRED CONCEPT

On September 26th, at the stakeholder input meeting, concepts 
for Colfax Skatepark design were discussed and reviewed. The 
stakeholders and clients shared their opinions to help develop a 
revised design concept.

Ledges and Flat Bars

Closed Bowl, Fun-Size Spine Feature

Step Up Gap

• Mining Elements

• Railroad Track Rails

• Skateable Rocks/Boulders

• Tree Stumps

Eliminated

Approved

Design Development | Stakeholder Meeting Feedback
Item 9A

47



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

APPROACH

FEATURE INTEGRATION

COLOR SCHEME

CONCRETE
COLORS

METAL
COLORS

BUILT PRECEDENT ELEMENTS NATURAL PRECEDENT ELEMENTS
The intent of theming within the design is to integrate the 
skatepark into Colfax’s environment. Thematic features encourage 
users to understand the culture and identity of Colfax. Theming 
elements will include highlighting details of Colfax’s natural and 
historical context. 

Colfax, once a major supply hub for goldmining camps, is now 
most known as a genuine historical railroad town. The Central 
Pacific Railroad was developed in the 1860s, part of the First 
Transcontinental Railroad project. One of the first station stops 
developed in California was Colfax. This railroad project eventually 
connected the east coast with the Pacific coast, San Francisco bay.

To preserve this rich history of Colfax, railroad and mining themes 
are considered within the skatepark design.

Design Development | Theming
Item 9A

48



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

Legend

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1

The revised concept design is a product of the 
feedback input that was received at the previous 
stakeholder meeting. Upon entrance, there are 
seat ledges and a stair set that leads to a closed 
bowl. The bowl features a hip and a peninsula 
spine that connects to a mini ramp. The street 
area features hips, ledges, a manual pad, downrail, 
flatrail, and a step up gap. South of the park is 
spectator space, which may include seating and 
shade depending on final budget.

Skatepark Entry Point & Signage

Skatepark - Ledges and Flat Bar

Skatepark - Bump to Ledge, Downrail
 
Skatepark - Spectator Viewing Area

Skatepark - Bowl / Halfpipe

Existing Parking

Existing Splash Pad

Existing Building

Green/Buffer Space

1

2

3

5

48

6

9
7

FEET

40201005
N

Pedestrian Circulation

Rider Circulation

Fence Line

Staging Area

Rules Sign

Skatepark features are schematic and will be 
modified based on community input, project 

budget and geotechnical findings. The current 
design is schematic to represent the intended 

terrain style within the project scope.

8

Final Design Concept | Design Narrative & Site Plan
Item 9A

49



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

Birds Eye View - Southwest Birds Eye View - Northwest

Birds Eye View - Southwest Birds Eye View - East

Final Design Concept | 3D Perspectives
Item 9A

50



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

`

`` `

`

`

`

`

BREAKDOWN

3D DESIGN PERSPECTIVE

CONSTRUCTION ITEM
General Conditions
Civil Works
Landscape Remediation
Skatepark Elements

SUBTOTAL
Contingency (± 15%)
SKATEPARK CONSTRUCTION TOTAL

DESIGN FEES

ESTIMATED COST
 $107,500

$89,750
 $31,500

$250,000

$478,750
$71,812

$550,562
` BUDGET - CASH IN HAND $602,452

 $49,500

KEY ASSUMPTIONSADD ALTERNATESLEGEND

DONATIONS

The estimated construction cost is based off of the following assumptions:Additional amenities for consideration not included in 
current skatepark cost breakdown (costs to be determined): 

• ALT 1 - Seat wall and skateable ledges 

• ALT 2- Shade Structure(s) 

• ALT 3 - Spectator Plaza & Seating

• ALT 4 - Boulders & Additional Plants

• Park signage, trash, recycling, and bike racks by others
  
• Project shall be advertised and bid with prevailing wages. 

• Installation of subsurface drainage is feasible and can be utilized in the all-
wheels skatepark design.

• Contractor can stage material and equipment on site.

• All-Wheels facility shall consist of a mix of skatepark features with total 
target size of roughly 7,500 sq. ft per the current cash budget available. 

Confirmed with Letter “In-Kind” Donations

Teichert Construction - Aggregate base, fill material, and 2 

boulders. Ready-mixed concrete, including aggregates and 

cement. Batching and Delivery directly or in partnership with 

suppliers.  Drainline installation, Demolition of existing fencing and 

concrete slabs, and boulder placement.

Robinson Sand & Gravel - Delivery of donated aggregate base and 

boulders. Will allow waste concrete to be dumped at their Grass 

Valley Hwy material yard. 

Pending “In-Kind” Donations

Colfax Best Western - 50% reduced rate for lodging (~$75)

Triton Construction - Clearing, grubbing, and removal of material

Base Project Budget

Additional Amenities & Features

Potential Skatepark Fencing

Skatepark 

Alt 3 Spectator Plaza
& Seating

 Alt 1 
Skateable Ledges

Alt 4 
Boulder
& Plants

Alt 4 
Boulder
& Plants

TIE INTO
EXISTING FENCELINE

TIE IN
TO

 EXISTIN
G

 FEN
C

ELIN
E

Alt 2 Shade Structure

Alt 1 Seatwall

Construction Development | Cost Estimate
Item 9A

51



COLFAX ALL-WHEELS SKATEPARKCOLFAX, CA
October 2024

Project Development | Schedule
Item 9A

52



378541.1 
City of Colfax United Sovereign Americans Resolution on Elections 
Staff Report October 23, 2024 

378552.1 

Staff Report to City Council 
FOR THE OCTOBER 23, 2024 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

From: United Sovereign Americans 
Prepared by: Conor Harkins, City Attorney  
Subject: United Sovereign Americans Resolution on Elections 

   Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

Summary/Background 

United Sovereign Americans presented the attached resolution at the City’s October 9, 2024 City Council 
meeting. Councilmember Lomen asked staff to add the resolution to the City Council’s next agenda for 
discussion and there were no objections to doing so.  

The resolution calls on “our Representatives” to conduct the 2024 general election in accordance with a list of 
“existing laws[] and equitable principles of law.” Staff has reviewed the resolution and supporting 
documentation and cannot verify many of its factual assertions. We do not recommend adopting resolutions of 
dubious veracity. Staff notes that the Heritage Foundation has identified 1,561 “proven instances of voter fraud” 
nationwide since 1982.1 

The laws United Sovereign Americans cites supporting its proposed resolution are all federal laws — there is no 
reference to the California Elections Code, the Placer County Code, the Colfax Municipal Code, or any 
regulations or policies putting those laws into practice. It is not clear the procedures the Resolution promotes 
comply with the laws or procedures applicable to municipal elections in California. Therefore, we cannot 
recommend advocating for the changes proposed by the resolution. 

Attachments: 

1. United Sovereign Americans Letter to the Colfax City Council; Resolution for a Legally Valid 2024 General
Election; Appendix

1 https://www.heritage.org/voterfraud 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Take no action 

Item 9B

53



Item 9B

54



Item 9B

55



Item 9B

56



Item 9B

57



Item 9B

58



Item 9B

59



Item 9B

60


	10-23-24 Agenda.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

	10-9-24 Minutes
	10-16-24 Minutes
	2024-Q4 FY Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis QE 06.30.24 Revised
	2025-03 September Staff Report - Cash Summary final
	2025-03 Sept Cash Balance Graph Council report.pdf
	GF Chart

	25-03 Cash Summary September 2024.pdf
	Cash Summary

	25-03 Cash Balance by Fund Sept 2024.pdf
	Sept 2024


	I&I Final
	241024 I&I Mitigation Project Acceptance-Staff Report.pdf
	241024 I&I Mitigation Project Acceptance-Resolution.pdf

	Living War Memorial History Final
	Staff Report - Living War Memorial Park.pdf
	Living War Memorial History.pdf

	Skate Park Final
	Staff Report to City Council - Skate Park Update and Approve Peliminary Plans.pdf
	Reso Placer County Skate Park Update and Preliminary Plans.pdf
	2024-10-16_Colfax Skatepark Final Concept Design Package.pdf

	United Sovereign Americans final
	2024-10-23 USA Elections Resolution(378552.1).pdf
	United Sovereign Americans Resolution 10-9-24




